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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROCTECTION AGENCY
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T I
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P ROCEZETDTINGS

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Ckay. Good
morning. This 1s September 19th. We are here for
day five of this broéeeding. |

Mr. McAfee, are yoﬁ ready with your next
witness?

MR. McAFEE: Yes, I am, YeurIHonof. The
respondents will call Mike Vos. He's in'the hall. I
will get him. |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Good morning.
Did I heér your last name is Vos?

MR. MIKE V03: Yes, it is.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okavy. Please
ralse your right hand. -

MIKE VOS,

called as a witness by counsel for the Respondent,

being first duly sworn by the Administrative Law
Judde, was examined and testified as follows:

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okéy.r Have a
seat,‘Mr. Vos, and give us ysur first and last name'
and spell your name, please.

THE WITNESS: Mike Vos. It's M-i-k-e and

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDRGE: Ckay .

Mr. McAfee.
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MR. McAFEE: Thank you, Your Honor.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. McAFEE:

‘Mike, can we assume you're related to a

Lowell Vos?

A,
Q.

please?

51028.
Q.
A,
0.
A,

feedlot.
Q
A
0.
A
Q.

study?
A

Q.

A..

Yeah. That's my dad.

Okay. And could you tell us your .address,
It is 1012 Knox Avenue, Kingsley, Towa,

How old are YOu, Mike?

Thirty-three.

What's your current occupation?

I fafm with my dad and I work for him at the

What's your educational backgréund?

I have two years of colliege.

Where at?

Iowa Lakes Community College in Emmetsburg.

And what was vyour major or your course of.

Farm management.
Following college, what did you do?

I went right to working for my dad at

the"—fafming and trying to rent some ground of my own
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and working at the feedlot.

Q. And how long ago has that been?
A. .'85 is when I gct cut of college.

Q. So you've been employed at the feedlot and
engaged as a farmer since then?

A, Yep. Yes.

Q. 'And in this same area?
A, Yes.

0. And at this feedlot that's the subject of
this hearing? |

A, Yes.

0. Cculd you tell us a little bit about what
you do at the feedlot? |

A. I'm actually kind‘of a--I don't know if you
call it a jack-of-alli-trades. I do a little of
everything. I1'1l do chores some days. . I--1 plant
all the corn.and beans and run the combine and, oh,
feed éattle, vaccinate cattle. I*11l scrape vards.
I'm a payloadet operator usually for hauling manure
and.a little bit of-- Fix vents.‘ Anything that
needs done, I'vé usually did it béfore, S0. ..

Q. Okay. And you said payloader. Is that a
type-- And I believe you said this. Is that a type
of manure lcader? |

A. . Yeah. It's bigger than a tractor. An end
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loader is just a heavier duty sSo you can--it lasts

longer. It's just a big loader, I guess, for loading
manure. And we use it to load feed and everything.
Q. Kind of like maybe we would see at

construction sites?

A. Right. Same_thingf

. Mike, I want to talk to ybu about scme 5f‘
your duties or jobs at the feedlot, and I believe you

mentioned one, and that is scraping the lots.

A Yesi

Q. Are you kind of the person in charge of
that?

A, Oh, we have a various-- We have anOther

‘full—time employee that he does it more than I do

because it's a--I call it a monotonous Jjob. It's
just a continuous job that we do all the time. And
we've also had other people hired to do it'also. But
I havewﬂz_dé do it, yés, I dc.

. Okay. I want to start with cQuld you
explain.to_the Court exactly what kind of machine vyou
use to_do this?

A. Well, we call 1t a box scraper, but it's
pretty much like a blade on a--you'll see behind a
tractor, but it has sides én it;‘like two- of three~

foot sides, so it can hold some capacity. And vou
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would pull it behind a four-wheel drive tractor, a
pretty good size tractor.
And pretty much you just pull it, and it's
hydraulically driven, so you can raise and lower it,

and you sérape up any_material you want to. And you

‘pull a lever and it raises up and you can stockpile

with it or transport it to a different place. I
guess thatfs all I can explain 1it.
Q. Ngo. That's fine. And then once it's full

you go back and--

A. Do it again,'yeah;

Q. And you cover the entire yard when yéu——

A, Yeah. It's usually-- We've got.two of
them. There's a--I belleve one's a 12- or 14—foot@£

"and the other one's a 10-foot wide, sc they're fairly

good size.

Q. With your tractor, can you put any down

'pressur@ on the blade or the box scraper?

A. Yeah. 'They're built out of--I think it's

half-inch wall metal, so there's quite a bit of

. weight in all the~~ And you put it down, the whcle

wéight of the machine is pressing down on the ground,
so it's got guite a bit of down dground pressure.

Q. What does the yard look like after YOu

scrape 1t?
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A, It loéks just like a-~a dirt road, I guess
I'd call it. It;s pretty.much bare ground.

Q. Could yocu tell ﬁhe Court kind of what
your"—at.the Lowell Vos Feedlbt what the time table
is for scrapingllots?'

A, It depends a lot cn the weather. Like in
the wintertime it's a for sure each vard gets scraped
fwo to three tim@s a day--well, a day, a continuous
process. And then inlthe summertime, it's more
weekly event, I suppose, every week.

And we just try to keep everything as clean
és we can, and cother people have even commented on

how clean our feedlot is compared to neighboring

feedlots.
Q. What's the purpose for scraping the lots?
A. Mainly Just to keep the manure scraped up-so

the 'cattle have a nice place to lay down, and it just
kéeps them nice. it doesn't get muddy. If it rains,
it's nice and cléan in there and just keeps then
clean, I guess. |

Q. Now, when you used this.box scraper, I think
ybu talked about you'd come to a place and vou'd dump
it. Tell the Court what you do then.

A, We--we usually-- Well, in the wintertime

we'll scrape it up and it will be~-~ In the
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wintertime we bed also with cornstalk bales. We have
a shredder that shreds the bales, and then we'll
scrape itlall up; and we have two big maﬁuxe
spreaders_and Qe'll haul it out, because we always

have a place to go with it because the harvest is

over with.

In the summertime, it's a little more

difficult 1f there's nowhere to go, like if we don't

 have~-the corn and beans are still growing in the

field or-—- Like we usually have an oats field or
something. |

We will stockpile it on'a——probably in the
high spots of the yards, énd as soon as we start
chopping oats‘or something, have a place to haul. it
Eack out, we will go in, then, in a later time and
load it back‘up and spread it in our oats field.

Q. I want to talk about what yvou've called
stockpile a little bit. When you say you puﬁ it
inwwﬁhen you dd that, is if removed from the pen
where you scraped 1t up from?

A, I don't quite'understand what you mean.

Q. When you use the box scraper, and you‘said
you use the payloader to pile it; is that right-?

A, Right.

Q. Is that done within the pen where vou
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scraped it up?

" A, Normally, vyes.
0. Do the cattle have access to it, then?
A. Yés, they would.
Q. What do they do?
A. Actually, they will-- It's normally drvy,

énd it’'s just a big mound, and they'll--actually,
they lay on it and they like it because.they get up a 
little higher and the breeze hits it. But we try to
get them out of there as soon aslwerhave a place to
go with it.

Q. When they lay on it, does it do anything to
it, the pile? . |

k. No. Not really.

Q. Does it pack it down?

A I'd say it would a little. Yes, it would a
little. .

0. - Do you do énything differently as far as

scraping the lots if there's rain forecast?

A. If they~=- I mean it's--you know, the

"weather is hard to judge, but if we know it's

supposed to rain for a week straight or--yeah, we

definitely try to get them scraped up and cleaned up,

so yeah.

. What about snow?
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A Snow, we always-—-it's a time-consuming Jjob,
but we try to always stock-—-same thing; We'II go in
and scrape the whole yards down into a stockpile, and
we use a payloader and a box scraper then SO we
can--you can put the big mound--make it in a smaller
afear Just tallef.

And usually can't geﬁ it all done in the

same day, but then the following day we will get our

' manure spreaders and load it up and haul ii out to--

We got terraces all a%ound, and we've‘got adjoining
fields around there we also farm. To the north of
the feedlot, there's a gquarter that we dump the snow
on. |
MR. McAFEE: Your Honor, may I approach?
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.
Thank you.
MR. RYAN: Which exhibit number are we
leooking at, counsel? |
| MR. McAFEE: I Jjust wanted to get it
centered here énd I'1ll state it in ﬁhe record. It's
Coﬁplainant's Exhibkit No..4.
BY MR. McAFEE:
Q. Okay. Mike, can you-- This has been-- I
have pIaced'Complainantfs Exhibit 4 on the LitePro,

and it is a little light there, but can you maybe
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come around and show us, just by pointing, where you
typically haul the--the-- Well, I'1l let you testify

what vyou do with the snow--

A, The snow?
Q. --once you remove it from the lot.
A. Normally, just because it's easy access from

the road--there's terraces up in this corner and it's
right off the road-Qwe'll usually go up into those-
terraces up in this area here and dump the sﬁow. Oor
if we have to, we'll go out in these terraces back
behind just te the south.

Q. Okay. Just for pﬁrposes of the reéord,
you've pointed to an area in the--what I would call
the northwest corner of the section where the feedlot
is located, and it's directly‘west 0of the feedlot on

the west side of the unnamed tributary; is that

right?
A. That would be right.
Q.  And yéu say there are terraces there?
A, Yes, thefe are.
o. And then you alsc pointed to an area of

the—--on Exhibit 4 that is south of the feedlot out in
the--would you call it a large cornfield?
A. Yes. It's 296 acres, I believe.

Q. And those dark lines on that exhibit, are
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those terraces also?
A Yes, they are.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Mr. McAfee,
you don't wanf_to have'this witness mark on--it would
be.a new exﬁibét number, but as the other witnesses
héve done? |
| It's your call, but, I mean, all the sgdden
we're going with just a verbal description, and‘the
practice has been to have people, throughout the
hearing, mark. |

"Because I was listening closely to your

verbal description. Someone who is looking at the

recbrd wouldn't really bé able to hone in on where
Mr. Vos Says that fhe snow is moved to, I don'f
think.

MR. McAFEE: I--1 appxeéiate the-- Once you
heard my description, if we want to‘make sure iﬁ‘s
clearer in thé.record, why, I'm ail for that; Your
Honor. |

TH% ADMINISTRATIVE LAW. JUDGE: Right. Weli;
it would seemrto be important to you in'terms of vyour
?osition about this matter.

MR. McAFEE: May we dJo off the record for a.
minute?

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes, we'll-go
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off the record.

(Discuséion‘off the record.)

MR. McAFEE: I would like to substitute for
the witness to mark on Complainant's Exhibit 3. 1It's
just-~it's the same map. It's the one I can find in
my list of éxhibits righﬁ now. If that'slokay with
Complainant's counsel--

MR. RYAN: No problem.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: And vou're
going to denominate this fof purposes of

identification, I guess, at this point the

Respondent's Exhibit-- What number will it have?

MR. McAFEE: I believe I'm at 20, if I
remember right, Your Honor .
| Excuse me, YdurlHonor. The last one T see
on my list of Respondent's Exhibits is R-17.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: That's the

one I--that's the last one I have listed,

Respondent's Exhibit 17.

MR.-MCAFEE: Okay. So this would be‘
Respondent's Exhibit 18.
THE ADMINESTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okavy.
BY MR. MCAFEE:‘ |
Q. Mike, could you Just identify for the record

wheré you haul the snow, I believe, as you'wve
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testified?' Now, what we'd l1ike to have you do is

take this Sharpee pen and on this exhibit just draw a

'circie around the areas where you take the snow out

as you've testified.

A. Where we dumpwwhaul it tov
Q. Correct.
A. In this area or-—--

TEHE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Why
don't you put an S in the middle of that, okay, and

then we will know that that refers to the first area

that you've marked, is that right, Mr. Vos, of where

you put sSnow?
THE WITNESS: Yeah. Yes.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

THE WITNESS: I mean, 1t's a pretty bigw-.

I'm not exact every time. It's in this general area

in these terraces in this field.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: How about
putting an S-—-

THE WITNESS: I'm not the best artist.
BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. Thank yvou. Are there any other places you

take the snow after you've removed it from the
feedlot?

“A. No. It generally always goes to these
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areas.
Q. Thank you. You can have a seét.
Mike, what happens when you pile it there?
Do the piles get pretty big?
A. Oh, depends on the vear, I guess, how much
Snow we get.

Q. Well—-

. A. - But not huge, ﬁo.
Q. Could you teli the Court how you pile it
there?
A, In the field?
C Q. Yes.
A. We just unloadrit. Either we'll~- It
depends. . Sometimes we actually spread it, our manure

spreaders will spread the snow, so it gets a little
moie area. Otherwise we'll just--they just unload it
there, kind of liké a dump truck, but it's a manure
spreader. It has an apron chain in it so it Jjust

pushes it off.

Q. Is there a reason why you choose these two
areas?
A; It's mainly the closest two areas to the

feedlot that have terraces, I guess, sc 1it's
convenlience.

Q. Is there any importance to the terraces?
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A, Well, it will hold the-- If it melts--
When it does melt in the spring, it can't go

anywhere. It.soaké away or follows the terrace, I

guess.
Q; On the first circle yvou placed on Exhibit

18, the one to the west of the feedlot, do you ever

see—-~-do you ever sSee any—4thé snow leave the terrace
areas ﬁh@n it melts?

A, No;

0. Would the same go for out in the field to

the south?

A. Yes.

Q. -Okéy. You mentioned bedding; is that right?
A, Correct. |

0. Cculd ybu describe that process?

A. Well, in the‘fall of the year, after

hérvest, we round-bale cornstalk'bales, so it will be
mainly just shredded up cornstalk bales in a big
rouﬁd bale.

And then we have a machiﬁe that it picks it
up, puts it in there. It's a big shredder is what I

would call it, and it will blow it out probabkly 50

feet. And we go in each vard and spread it ouft in

the yard so the cattle have a nice warm spot to lay

down and ‘just keeps them warm and comfortable.
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And if‘there happens fo be any ice on the

ground, cattle will soak into the ice and it gets
them wet, aﬁd then they get coid that way. And this
just gives them a place to lay down, nice aﬁd wWarm.

0.  So is it your testimony the bedding prevents
the cattle laying on the ice?

A.' Correct.

0. Okay. And are there any certain areas you
place the bedding?

A. We-——-we usuélly, in the winter, do it threé
times a week, Monday, Wednesdays and Friday. We'll

put approximately two bales--two to four bales in

~each yard, and each yard gets it, and then one to

Ctwo-—-— Depends‘on how many cattle are inrthe yard and

how much‘manure gets in the bedding. It is hauled
out weekly, I would say, or maybe twice a week.
We'll put it bn top a couple times, -and then when iﬁ
gets dirty, we'll spread that in the field or.a
different field and bHed them aQain. It's kind of a
continuous process. |

Q. You mentioned manure in the bedding.

"Evidently manure gets in it?

A. ° Yeah. That's-- Well, yeah. Cattle mainly

"do theilr duty, I gtess, in the bedding. They'ré not

as smart as an other animal. So it does get dirty as
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the weeks go on.

0. You've been around cattle all your life,
right?

A. Correct.

Q. Is there an&thing that a feedlot steer or

heifer usually does when they staﬁd up after laying
down in the bedding?

A. That's the first thing they do is stretch
out and do their--do their business, I guess.

Q. Okay. RAre there any particular areas of the

.feedlot of each pen that vou place the bedding?

A. Oh, we always place it on the highest part
of the;wor the driest part of the vard or kind of out
of the_wind too a iot of times to keep-- It 1ig in
the wintertime. W@'ré trying to keep them warm and
protected. But always up on.the higher end where
it's easy to scoop back up.

Q. Where would that be in relation to any
points of the feedlot where &here would be, maybe,
any runoff?

A, Oh, it would always be-- Actually, it would
5e the opposite of any-=-the highest point. And the y
runcff’s alwaysg gonna go to the lowest point, so I
guess the opposite ehd.

0. Back fo the scraping for a minute, vyou have
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feed bunks you feed the cattle in?

A, Correct.
Q. What's around these feed bunks?
A. We call it a concrete apron where the feed

wagon actually drives so it's a nice smooth area.
It's probably 8 foot on each side of the bunk.

Q. And otherwise is the vyard dirt?

A. ° Otherwise the yard's dirt, yes.
Q. Do you scrape those aprons”?
A. We do not scrape the aprons due to the

tractors we use on the scrapers have-~are sef up fbr
fieldwork, which usuaily requires duals, and they
have big--oh, arshaft that sticks out where.you can
put a second éet of‘rearltires on it, and that sticks
out too far and it hooks on the field bunks and it
breaks them, s0 we cannot go on‘the concrete.

Q. What usually ends up being‘on the concrete
apron after the cattle are Fed?

A They will waste some feed because,
especialiy Holstein cattle, I don't know why, they
root it up with-- They like it. And it spills feed
over the edge, so_there will be silage aﬁd corn and
hay all on there.

Q;‘ And you mentioned silage. You feed corn

silage?
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A. Yes.
MR. MCAFEE: I don't have any fiurther
guestions, Your Honor.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Do you
need a minute or are you ﬁeady?
MR. RYAN: One second, Youf Honor. Thank
you. |
| THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Sure.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. RYAN:
Q. Good morning, Mr. Vos.
MR. RYAN: For purposes of the record, since

your father is here and will be testifying to, would

it be appropriate for me to call him Mike, so we're

clear, 1f it's all right with you, Mr. Vos?
THE WITNESS: That's fine with me, vyeah.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: sure.
MR. RYAN: Just so we don't have two

Mr. Voses being cross—examined?

BY MR. RYAN:

0. I'm Mr. Ryan. I'm Mark Ryan from the EPA.
A. All right.
Q. Pleased to meet you.

Now, you testified a minute ago that you

scrape thé vards, T bélieve, in the summertime
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approximately once a week?
A. Approximately, yeah.
0. Yeah. Is there sometimes it's longer
between scrapings?
A. 'Oh, I would say both ways. Sometimes itl

possibly could go every other waek,'and sometimes 1t

could be three times a weak. It depends on the

cattle.
QL' Okay. And you would agree, would you not,
that the summertime is the rainy season in your part

of the world?

Al Correct.

0. - And ﬁhat's when you dget mést of your rainvz
A. Right.

Q. Yeah.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: You have to--

‘You have to keep your voice up and not just

say--mumble. Just yeses or nos, all right?
" THE WITNESS: All right.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: So your

answer fto the last guestion was yes?

THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR. RYAN:

Q. And you would agree that as soon as you

‘scrape-- Let me ask this first: Are the cows in the
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pens when you're scraping?
A. Generally, ves. 'Not always.
Q. So the scraper goes by. The cows will Fjust

walk in right behind it, possibly?

A Yes.

Q. End so the cows will start doing their thing
again?

.A. Yes. You will have. that.

Q. So weFll have manufe-d@posited pdssibiy

right behind the scraper as it dgoes by?
A. Yes.

Q. Okay. So it's safe to say, isn't it, that

‘the feedlot is never completely free of manure, 1is

it?

AL Neo.

Q. Okéy. Sb wﬁ@n you scrape up the‘manuré and
haul it away, as we've discussed, and we'll get to
that in a little bit,,you're never getting it all;.
there's always manure theré, right? |

A, Correct.

Q. So i1f it's raining, the rain's gonna wash
that manure off, won't it?

A. I would say some of 1t would wash. I doﬁ't
know where you're talking, but, ves, it-ﬁill mo%e,

ves.
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Q. Okay. So, now, you testified that
approximately once a week, and then you said
sometimes if you saw a big rainstorm cominé, I think

you sald like a week-long series of rain coming, you

might do 1t more often?

A.' 'Wel;, we'll do i1t before the réin hits, ves.
Q. Do you scrape during the rain?

A. No, we do not.

Q. Okay.‘ éo‘if you have a big week-long guliy

washer, you won't be out there scraping?

A. Probably not.

0. Okavy. And the cows are out there.the whole
time?

Al Yep.

0. And they're dropping manure?

A. Tes.

Q. I keep looking for a polite term fto

reference that--
A. Yeah.
Q. -—act.
And then _in the summertime vyou said you
primarily stockpiie‘it on site?
AL I don't know about primarily. If we don't
have a place to go, like if-- Farly on, we'll have

oats growing, but normally we have an oats field, so
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we have a place to go with it after the cats are
harvested, and that's later on in the summer. So

half of the summer, maybe. The other half we‘ll haul

it out.
Q. And where do vou haul it to in'thé summer?
A To the ocats field.
Q. And are those visible on this Respondent's

 Exhibit 187

A. No; Every year it's-- We have farms all
over the place, andlwe have--we put the ocats in
different areas every yeér S0 we get the fertilizer
up in the manuz@.” .

Q. Now, the stdck?iies that we talked about,

can they get fairly large at times in the summer?

A. I don't know what you call fairly—¥

Q. More.than~~

A, Yeah.

Q. ~-five feet high?

A. Well, probably, ves.

Q. And approximately how big around?

A. Well, normally itfs the same width as a

scraper. We just keep going higher. So it's 10 to
12 foot--well, 12 to 14 foot wide.
Q. And 5 feet high and how long?

A. Every vard is different. We have-- The
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small yards would be smaller, and-—

Q. So you stockpilé in each individual vyard?
AL Yes.

Q. Okay. Soc when vou scrape up, you move the
manure to a stockpiie in the yard, and it stays in
that particulaf yvard or.pen until, at some point, you‘
can move 1t off?

A. Generally, ves,

Q. And when rain falls out of the sky, it hits
that stockpile. You don't cover it with any kind of
plastic or anything?

zA. No.

Q. Yeah._'Okay. So the pfactical effect of
scraping is to simply move--not f@move immediately
the manure from the pen, it's jast to push i1t into a
corner, so to speak?

| A. Well, you've got a huge area you're talking
that the rain's gonna hit, and the manure pile is
going tb a——mgybe a twentieth of the yard size. - So
you have way less rain hitting.the pile than you
would if it was just scattered-ouf.

Q. Okaﬁ.' Please answer ny qﬁestion. My
question was‘wheﬁ it rains, the manure that you
removed is still in the pen?

A. Sometimes. If we don't have a place to haul
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it out.
Q. Okay. An@ you also testified that as soon
as the scraper goeslby, the ;ows are continuing to

drop manure all the time?

A Correct. .

Q. Okay. Is the ground pretty hard in the
feedlot?

A. Yeah. Well, yeah. Dirt,-so yes;

Q. Right. I mean{ is it compacted dirt or is

it loose so0il?

A; Probably compacted a little bit.

Q. Iis that from the hcooves of the animals?
Al Uh-huh.
Q. And I would suspecf your scraper, when 1t

was out s¢raping, doesn't dig down into the dirt;
otherwise-—
A. . You have to regulate that in the tractor,

yeah. You don't want it to take dirt.

Q.  Because otherwise your pen would disappear?
A. Correct.

Q. So you're just scraping off the surface; 1is

that correct?

Al Yep.
Q. Okay.
A. Yes,.
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0. And this soil is fairly compacted from all

the machinery running over it?

A. Yeah.
Q. And the heooves of the cattle?
A, I would say.

Q0.  How much do these cattle weigh, per average,
fully grown?

. Well, they're not always-fﬁlly grown in the

_yard.‘ I mean, they're anywhere from 40C pounds to

1,300 pounds.

Q. So you have these heavy animals tramping

around all the time and heavy machinery driving

through the pens?

A. Yep. Yes.

Q. In youf experience, does water_run off
combacted soils more than loose soils?

A. I assume so0, vyes.

‘Q. You testified in the winter that you--if
I've gdt this correct, and I was taking notes
guickly, so please correct me if I'm getting this
wrong, that you‘scrape it severai times a day in the
winter, did I get that correct, and when it's
snowing?

A . If it's snowing, we--we scrape--ves, we'll

scrape the snow all out of the yard that day it
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snowed.
Q. Okay. And how often does it snow in vour
part of the world in the wintertime?
A. Every-year is completeiy'different.
Q. Dkay. Would you typically see, in the

months of January and February, snow on a regular

‘basis in an average area®

A, Ch, maybe three to four times a month,
maybe.
(. Okay. So is 1t safe to say most of the time

you don't have snow cecming down iﬁto your vard?

A. Depends on the year, I guess. It's hard to
answer that.

0. And you talked about the bedding that you
put down. When you scrape-- If there's bedding on
the ground and you scrape for snow, does thé bédding
get scraped up?

A  We have separate piles. We always go one
aréa with the bedding; so when we scrape the snow,
we'll go around where we had the bedding. It goes fo
one spot, and then we'll sdrape the bedding up
separatély and spread that.

0. And that's when it snows?
A. Well, né. We scrape the bedding either way.

We clean the yard--the bedding out. If it gets a lot
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of manure in it, we'll do that. Two to three Ttimes a

week we'll clean it out and put fresh bedding in.

Q. QOkay.
A, Because the yards actually don't get that
dirty. Most of the manure is in the bedding because

the cattle, they tend to just love that area because
it's warm.

Q. And when it rains or snows on the bedding,
th@‘bedding gets wet, right?

'A: Correct.

Q. Okay. And does any of the bedding ever run
off with the rain? | |

A. Well, no. It's in the wintertime, so it'sM?

Q. Wéll, how‘aboﬁtw* Does it ever rain in the
wintertime?

A. Not tco often, no.

Q. Ckay. Now, you said after you picked
this~--the material up you would take it to these two
areas on Respondent's 18, which you've marked with an
5.

A. Well, this 1is the snow I picked up.

Q. Okayi The snow. And you would admit‘that
the snow proéably has——dées have manure mixed in with
it? |

A. Very, very little.
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Q. Okay.. So you use a scraper to-pick up the
SNnow?

A. Scraper and a loader, payloader, end loader.

g, Are the cows in the pens at the time?

E. Yes.,

0. Okay. And the cows are defecating?

A, Yes. Yes.

Q. So does the scraper--is it raised up to not

pick up the manure?

A You're gonna have some in the snow, I guess,
yes. |

Q. Do you remove right down to the grdund with
the scraper when you'rée removing snow?

A. There's usually a layer df ice or something
because of the--the groUnd's'usually a little warmer
when it snows, so it dets a little layer of frozen;—
It doeén’t ever get into the ground becéuse it's
frozen, but, yes, you're scraping-it off as clean as
we can getbt 1it. |

0. S0 you're scrapiﬁg it off as cl@an as you
caﬁ get it. You're getting-- Any ménure that is
scrapable is-qbing to go with the snow, correct?

A Yes.

Q. And then you haul it off to the area in the

northwest corner of the property we see aé the--
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A. Well; I should have probably made a bigger
circle. 1It's a pretty big field. It's in tﬁat
field, though. | |

Q. And you would agree that that field is right
above the_unnamed tributdry?

A, Yes.  But we're in the--there's terraces.

Q. Please answer my guestion. You would agree
that field we're looking at in the northwest corner
of your property 1is adjacent to the uﬁnamed

tributary? Yes or no?

A. I don't know what you mean by the "unnamed -
tributary.”
Q. Well, let's be clear.

MR. RYAN: May I approach, Your Honor?
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.
BY MR. RYAN:
Q. Okay: What we're looking at here on
Respondent's 18, which.E have right up on the
projeétﬁr :ight noﬁ, you would agree this is an

aerial photograph of your feedlot and farm, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And jou wrote in. the upper left?hand gornér
an 5=

A, Correct.

O. _w~for an area where you deposit snow which
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yvou've cleared off of the feedlots, correct?

Al Correct.
0. Now, looking here, starting at Franklin
Avenue and proceeding northeésﬁ up towards—- ' Is this

' 340th Street that runs on the north boundary of your

feedlot?
| A.  Yeah. It'é the county line so it's got two
names, but that's one.df.them.

Q. And what's the name on the north boundary.of
your feedlot? What's this street right here?

A. That's 340th.

Q. Okay. So that is 340th7?

A. Or 100th. It's got two signs on it. It's a
-crazy deal. One's Woodbury, one's Plymouth.

Q. Okay. So the line that we're looking at
right here-- And do YOU see the line I'm ﬁpinting
at?l |

A.  Right.

Q. Would you agree that's a small creek that

runs through your property?

A, "Correct.

Q. Okay. Now; could I have you please come
around and use the Sharpee, and just so--just for
purposes of this exhibit, we've been referring to

that--
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MR. RYAN: And correct me if I'm wrong,
Eldon.
BY MR. ﬁYAN:

Q. --as the unnamed tributary throughcut this

proceeding.
A. Okay. I wasn't here, so--
Q. That's fihe. "And can we agree that that

line I just pointed out is the unnamed tributary that
runs throﬁgh your property?

A, I guess s0, yes.

g. Could you put a little arfow next to it and

write "UNT" for unnamed tributary?

A.  UNT?

Q. Yes( please.

ﬁ. {(Witness complied.)

Q. ‘And you agree that's tﬁe little creek that

runs below the area with the 8 on 1t?

A. Correct.

Q. Ckay. Thank‘you. That's all I have for
that right now.

Okay. So ycou would agree, would vou not,
that theée area in the northwest corner of your
property is adjacent to the unnamed tributary?

A. Yes.

Q. And that's--in that area is where you
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deposit your snow that you remove from the feedlot?
A. Yes. |
Q. And you would agré@ that that's—--that aréa
slopes éown towards the unnamed tributary? |
A. Yes. But there 1is terraces in there.
Q. Okay. Again, but YOu would agree that this

area is uphill of the unnamed tributary?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, do you have tile drains in that field?
A. IT--I'm not 100 percent on that.

Q. You don't know whether.you haﬁe tile drains

there or not?

A. There possibly could be one down--way down
by those buildings that are in there.

Q. And what do tile drainé do, in general?

A. - They--I think thgy absorb springs, so if
there's a spring in the field, it helps dry out the
field.

Q. So 1f water falls out of the sky and soaks

into the ground, does it get into the tile drain?

A, I assume 590, yes.
Q. And where do the tile drains lead to?
A. Probably that UNT.
Q. So if you have snow depdsited in this

part--in that field and there's a tile drain--
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A. The tile drain is a long, long ways from
there.
Q. Please let me finish my question and then

you can answer your guestion. If there's a tile

drain in that field and the snow scaks intoc the
ground, it might get into that tile drain and flow
into the unnamed tributary?

A. I'd say no.

Q. But you don't know whether there's tile
drains there or not?

A, I'm not-- Well, I think there's one way
down by the creek, but there's not way up--I1 know
there's not dne where we're putting the snow, no.

Q; Okay. So6 there are no tile‘drains in that
area. So ybu said that you ﬁut them on terréced‘
areas because that's where they won't run off; is
that‘correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Now, do you ever monitor to make sure
they're not running off?

A I do not, no.

Q;‘ OCkay. So if it, in fact, was running off,
you wouldn't know?

A. Well, I drive that road_daily, so I woﬁld

probably see it.
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Q. But you just said that you don't monitor it?
A. I don't keep a record of it, no.
Q. And you don't go out and check after a rain

event to make sure the manure is not coming off of
these areas that you've placed 1t?
A. I've never--

MR. McAFED: Objection, Your Honor. He's

'referring to manure and the testimony has been

r@garaing SNOW.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Why
don't you rephrase the questibn.
BY MR. RYAN: |
Q. You agree there's snow in the manure that
you deposit in thié area, don't you?
A, No.
MR. McAFEE: Objection.: I believe he stated
that backwards. |
THE WITNESS: Right.
BY MR. RYAN:
| o. Sorry. Yqu aqreé that there's manure picked
up with the snow when you remove it from your
feedlot, correct?
A. . I-~ Possibly, ves. There pﬁobably is.
0. And you would agree that that manure that's

entrained in the snow is deposited ih the northwest
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field, correct?
A. Correct.
Q. Ckay. Andiso you don't actually check tor
see whether any of that manure is ever flowing off
inté the unnamed tributary, do you? |

A. Well, it can't go anywhere. It's in a

terrace.
0.  That wasn't my guestion.
A. Oh.
Q. My guestion is you don't ever check to make

sure whether it's flowing off or not, do you?

‘A, I don't drive out there and write it in- a
book or-— No. . I don't get what you wanlt me to say.
Q. Do you go out on a daily basis and look to

make sure it's not running off?

Al I drive by that every day.

Q.. No.:s That's not'my queétion. You don't go
out there on a daily basis to look?

A. I do.not go in the fiéld on a daily basis.

Q. And do you ever--other than casually driving
by, you don't ever go out and check it, do you, to

see whether it's running off into the unnamed

ﬁributary?
A. I guess not, no.
Q. And my same questions will apply to the § in
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the southeast corner that you made on Respondent's

i8.

Al Well, that's impossible for that to get
there.

Q. Okay. Again--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: But you have
to just answer his question, okay?
BY MR. RYAN:

Q. Okay. My guestion 1s you don't monitor that

area for runoff, do you?

Al No.
Q. Okavy. Now, you would agree, would you not,
that when it rains-- It rains hard at times in your

part of the world in the summer, doesn't it?

A. Sometimes, ves.

Q. Yeah. And in the spring it can rain hard
too?

AL Yes.

O. And‘you would agree, would you not, that if

you took manure from your feedlot and moved it to one
of your fields that could potentially‘wash off in a
hard rain, couldn't it?

A, You mean spread it in a field? What do you
mean put 1t in the field?

0. Well, referring to the placing your--the
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snow, which we've--you've already stated could
possibly have manure in it;‘
A. Correct.
Q. In that hOxtheast field if it rained hard on
top of that, it could potentially run.off if it
rained hard énough,_couldn‘t ite

A. I would say no. Possibly, if there'é

terraces, so it's going to be very hard.

Q. But it's pbssible,_right?

A. I can't—-- I don't know. I guess 1t's
possible.

Q. Now, do you know what constitutes a

pollutant under the Clean Water Act?

A, No.

0. Would ydu consider manure a pollutant?
" A. I‘mlasguming S0O.

Q.. Qkay. Wouid you considef silage a pollutant

if it got into the creeks?
A. kNo.
MR. MCAFEE: I'm going to object, Your
Honor. He's asking the witness for é leqal
conclusion.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yeéh. That--
MR. RYAN: I'll rephrase, .Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.
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Rephrase.
BY MR. RYAN:

Q. When you're’doing your routine maintenance
on the yards, keeping them clean, as you spoke
before, do you try and prevent things from running
off your yard during a rain event?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. But you don't have-~there's no.

" berming around your vyard, 1s there?

A.' Yeah, there is.

Q. I mean around all of your yard.

A. There's-- Yeah, there's somewhat of a‘berm.
on-- On the westVend, everything goes into a lagoon

or basin.

Q. But on tﬁé south end, there's no bermiﬁg on
thelsouth end, is there?

A There's a slight berm on-- There's an
openiﬁg where there's no berm, but there's a berm
around maéorify of it.

Q. But you would agree there are low points on

;the south end-=~

A. Correct.

Q. ~~whefe there's no berming and stuff can run
of £?

A. Correct.
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0.  And you agree you have no retention ponds?
A. Not on the south end.
o. Okay. So you would agree, then, that when

it rains things can run off over_yodr yvard to the
south, for example?

A. Water runs off, ves.

0. Okay. And you would agreé that water—~-that

water would contain, at times, manure?

A. Nof that vou can‘see, no.

Qﬂ ﬁut that wasn't my question.

A, I don't know the answer to thai. I mean, I
don't know. TI've never tested the water.

0. . And 1s it possible that silage runs off to

the éouth?

A. Very minimum, if- it is. Maybe‘along.the

bunk there a little bit. |
Q. How about bedding?

A, Probébly not, because it's usually in the
winter only, and that's very rare that it<wouid rain
in the winter. If it does, it's freezing rain, and
nothing runs. |

0. S@ you wouldn't expect to see silage and
bedding flowing off of the south side of the lot into
those farm fields to thélsouth?

A. Maybe silage from the-- I guess it could
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" from the cement aprons along the bunks, there might

pe spillage of hay and silage mixed, but not a huge
guantity.

MR. RYAN: May I have 30 seconds?

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: "You can have
more than 30 seconds.

AMR.lRYAN: Thank vyou, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: We'll go off
the record for a minute. |

(Discussion off the reéord.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: We're back on
the record, and, Mr. Ryan} you say you'wve conéluded
your cross?

MR. RYAN:I Yes, I have, Your Honér. Thank
you-very much.

| THE ‘ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:  Before you

begin your redirect, Mr. McAfee, if~-that's not

. saying you have to have it, but assuming for a moment

that you are, you didn't move for the admission of
Respéndent's Exhibit 18. Do you want to do that?

MR. McAFEE: Yes. ‘Thaﬁk you, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. And so0
any‘objectién, Mr. Ryan?

‘MR. RYAN: I apolégize, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: That's all
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right. Mr, McAfee just moved for the admission of
Respondent‘s Exhibit 18.

MR. RYAN: I have no objection, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

‘Respondent's‘Exhibit 18 is admitted.

(Respondent's Exhibit No. 18
was received in evidence.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: All right,

' Mr. McAfee.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. McAFEE:
0. ‘Mike, one a% a time. Related to the
scraping and how. often you do it, did you have more

cattle in the past than you have now?

A. Yes.

0.  Did ydﬁ scrape more often when you had more
cattle?

A. Yes. W@.actually have sometimes a retired
personkthat wéuld scrape nonstop. He’d'just——thatfs

all his job was is to do one yard, and when it's done -
he'd go to another yard and just try to keep them
clean.

Q. When you scrape in the summer, is there any

dirt in with the manure when you scrape?

A. Yes, there would be.
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Q. Do you have any idea how much of each or--
A. I just know that in the fall we haul a lot

of dirt in to fix all our holes or water tanks. 1t

seems like, yeah, there's--was substantial amount. I

don't know how much, though.
| Q. Mr. Ryan asked yéu about the pens being hard
or compacted, Ilbelieve. Along those lines, do you
usually need booté to walk out in your vyards?
. Actually, it's amazing that very rare-- I
meah, if it's raining you have to weéf, like, just a

small overshoe, not a knee boot like a lot of places

do. Pretty-- It's just sticky-and slimy. It's not
deeap. | |

0. And what do you attribute that to?

A, Just that we--it's just‘dirt. It's not--

We try to keep them as clean as we can.

0. You also talked about the bedded areas.  Are
they as hard as the areas. that don't have bedding?

A. Yeah. They'd be the same.

Q. Okay. After tﬁe bedding is placed on them,
is it hard, then, on top of the bedding?

A. .Oh{ no. No. Not on tdp éf the beddihg.
Iﬁ!s always soft and jﬁst like ccrnstalks.

Q. Mr. Ryan asked vou quite a few guestions

about the snow and the manure in the snow, et cetera.
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You ﬁay have testified to this, but how'much——hqw
much manure do you see in the snow?

A. You actuaiiyw~ It looks like nice white
snow when you unload it. I mean, I wouldn't
recommend eating it, but it's pretty clean snow.

0. But theré is some manﬁre ih it?

A, There would be a little. I don't know how
much, but there would definitely.be some in it.

ﬁR; McAFEE: No further‘questions, Your
Honorz.
MR. RYAN: Just one questidnf Mr; Vos.
RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. RYAN: |

Q.  If it's not in the snow, it's still in the
pen, isn't it, after you scrape up the snow? If it
doesn't get in the snow,'it‘s‘still in the pen, isn't
it? |

A. There was none under it, vyeah. It's either
in the-- T don't know. . It's either in the‘anima}
yet or in the snow ér in the pile, one of the places.

MR . RYAN} Okavy. IThank you very much.

THE WITNESS: All right. Thanks.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: You're sﬁre?
You can-- When there's another question, then yocu

have the opportunity to follow up with additional
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diréct. And even i1if-~ And I'm scomewhat open on
this; If you have something that yoﬁ forgot to ask
and you féel it's important, for both'sides, I would
allow a guestion to be asked, even though it's not
étrictly part of redirect.
FURTHER REDERECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. MCAFEE:

Q. Mike, you were just asked a question about
if the manure's not in the snow, where is it, but you

also scrape, don't you, when it's not snowing?

A, Right. So it could be scraped up already.
Q. And I think vyou also testified to the effect
that-- What effect does the bedding have on where

the cattle dung in‘the wintertime?
A. It's almost--1 would Say almost 95 percent

of it is righ% on the bedding.

MR. McAFEE: No further gquestions.

THE ADMINiSTRﬁTIVE LAW JUbGE: And then but
i did noticeF— We'll go off the record.

{Discuszgion off the record.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: We're back on
the.record. | |

MR. RYAN: No, Your Honor, I have no more

gquestions.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Ckay. That's
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it, Mr. Vos. Thank you for your testimony.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
(Witness excused.)
'THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. -So——
MR. McAFEE: Pardon me, Your Honor?
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Are you ready
for yoﬁr next witness?
MR. McAFEE: Yes.
THE ADMINiSTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: So we'll take
five minutés. | |
{Short recess.)
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: All right.
I'm Judge Moran. Please raise your right hand.
BRAD WOERNER,
called as.a‘witness by counsel for the Respondent,
being first duly sworn by the Certified Shorthand
Reporter, was examined and testifie@ és follows:
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Ckay. Have a

seat, sir. And then, first of all, state your name

'nice and clearly for us, and then spell your name for

us .

THE WITNESS: BRrad Woerner, B-r-a-d
W-o~e-r-n—-e-—-r.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

Mr. McAfee.
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DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. Good morning, Brad. Could you please staté
your address for the record.

A. 1407 St. Benedict Drive, Yankton, South
Dakota, 57078._

Q. Could you glve us a little‘bdckground on
vourself, starting with where you went ﬁo college?

A, I went to Iowa State University. Began in
the fall of 1991, graduated with a bacheior'; dégree
in ag engineering with an emphasis in structural and
environméntal in May of 1996 and--when I got my |
bachelor's degree.

And then went right into graduate school at
Towa State and reéeived my graduate degfeewwfinished
my course work, excuse me, in August of 1998 and
ultimately received the degree in December of 1988.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW‘JUDGE: And what was
the grad degree in? |

THE WITNESS: The graduate degree was 1in ag
engineering.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.
BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. First of all, Mr. Woerner, where are you

from?

L
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Al Pardon me?

Q. Where did vyou grow up?

A. I grew up in Valny, Nebraska.

0. . Did you grow up on a farm?

A. I did not grow up on a farm. I grew up in a
small community of about 1,700. Excuse me. It was a

rural community and a farming community.

Q. So were you ever able toc be on a farm?

A. Yeg, sir. |

Q.. Okay. Back to your educational background,
and now we'll get into your work experience. What

did you do upon graduation with a master's degree in
engineering?

A. In August of 1998, I started working for

Towa State Universicy Extension in the southeast area

of the state. I was initially housed in Mahaska

County and then was transferred over to Marion

Cbunty.

I was an ag engineering field speciallst was
the title, which.allowed me the opportunity to serve
the'ag.community, livestock producers, farmers, in
The Soﬁtheast portion of the state.

Q. Give us~-znd maybe you have, but give us, if
you could, a little more detail on what you did with

farmers.
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A. We, as field specialists, were there to
provide free assistance to the communify, to the ag
community. We workéd with several producers,
producer groups, commodity grouﬁs.

In particular with livestock prodﬁcers, we
provided assistance in desigﬁing settling basins and
dther structures for their facilities. ‘We wrote
numerous nutiient manégement plans for those
prodﬁcers that were submitted to the Icwa DNR.

We also worked with gréin.prbdﬁcers.on grain
handling, drying, grain storage facilities, as well
as homeowners with drainage iésues, wet baséments,'

how to improve drainage, some alr quality issues

within the house as well as within livestock

facilities.

0. You're no longer with--or in that position,
of course, so when did you make a change?

. In March of 2002, I sta;ted working for
Eisenbraun & Associates in Yankton, which is a civil
engineering, surveying, environmental engineering
firm. And in that capacityQ I was initially hired as
a project engineer and worked exclusively within our
agricultural engineering group.

Since that time, I have--I have become a

partner in the firm and have moved up to head
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of——heading up, excuse mé, the ag enginéering program
at ocur company. I have approximately two full-time
engineers that work underneath ﬁe, as well as wvarious
field crews and AutoCAD technicians.

Q. Do you do much wozklwith feedlots?.

A, Yes. In fact, that's all I've done since
méving £o Yankton is working with Eisenbraun &
Assoéiates. The company itself stérted deoing
agricultural engineering for the livestock prbducers
in South Dakota in the approiimately '93, ;94 time
framé, and since that time our market share has grown
tremendously, and'we've assisted.séveral hundred
producers with permitiing in a four—stéte region.
Towa, South Dakota, Nebraska{ and Minnescta wqﬁld be
the‘four states that we focus con.

Q. As part.of your duties 'and job
responsibilities, do you--what do you do for
feedlots?

A. For-—-for all of our livestock producers,‘we

meet with them, get an understanding of what problems

or issues they may have, what--I guess ultimately
what do they want to accomplish, whether it's a new
facility, an expansion of a facility,.permitting of a
facility based oh é complaint or just as a desire to

permit the facility.
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Our company provides all of the enginéering
and surveying for those producers for botﬁ design and
construction.

Q. As part of your work with Eisenbraun, do you
do any computer modeling?

A. We could scome computer modeling. When it
coﬁes to modeling runoff forlfeedlots, it's reguired
to show that the structures are sized proﬁerly to
handle the=runoff from the storm eventis.

0. And do you do that personally?

A Yes. |

MR. McAFEE: Your Hgnor, I would move that
this witness be designated as an expert witness.

MR. RYAN: in what field?

MR. McAFEE: Eﬁ the field of enginéering,
and in specifically rggarding this case,-dealing with
Computer mbdeling. |

MR. RYA&Q May I have a minute, Your Honor?

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW. JUDGE: Yes. |

MR. RYAN: May I voir dire on the modeling
igsue, Your Honor? | |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.

VOIR DIRE EXAMINATION
BY MR. RYAN:

'Q. Mr. Woerner, vyou've testified just a moment
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ago that you do computer modeling and you sald for
feedlots and yoﬁ said it's reguired. Do you recall

that'ﬁestimony?

A, Yes.
0. How long have you been modeling?
A. With Eisenbraun & Associétes, since—-
QT No. In general.
A. In general?
Q. That would be computer modeling, hydrologic

computer modeling.

~A. Since August of 1998, January of 1999 fof
sure. |

0. And how many different models do you use?

A. We have used the SITES model, the TR-55

model, a couple of spreadsheet models that have been
devel@ped by the Iowa NRCS .
Q  And are these models all related to modeling
runoff from feedlots?
A. Yes, sir.
0. . And what was the first one?
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: No. _Youi

know, I allowed you a little bit of leeway, but

.really you're straying into subjects not as to

| whether this witness is qualified as an expert but

into how you might deal with the extent of his
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ex?ertisé, the extent, and that will be subject to
cross-examination.

MR. RYAN: Your Honor, vyou're correct. I'm
sorfy. I can't help myéelf sometimes. I apologize.
Just a couple more guestions—-
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Méybe..
MR. RYAN: --if I may. |
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.
BY MR. RYAN:
Q. And is modeling pait of your daily work at
Tisenbraun & Associates?
A, - Yes. ' For our livestock producers.
MR.'RYAN:"And just so I'm clear, counsel,
how were you seeking to have him qualified again?
MR. McAFEE: As a--as an engineer, as an
Iagricultural engineer, and as regarding compufer

modeling as the issues have been presented in this

. case.

‘MR. RYAN: I have Ro ébjections, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Right. But,
you know, and I so designate this person, but I'm not
going to limit his area of expertise'simply to
modeling because he has expertise by virtue of his
agricultural engineering degree and his master's

degree in agricultural engineering, and to the extent
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that EPA‘has been advised that—;through the
prehearing‘exchangelthat that would be part of the
subject of his testimony, unless you can show it's
outéide of that, this person is cleaily an expert and
able to testify and not just limited to the subject
of modeling.

In other words, I donft want-to--just
because Mr. McAfee has sorﬁ of spcken with a broad‘
brush about his expertise, that that doesn;t mean
that he's--may only testify about that, again, as
long és the prehearing e%change S0 adﬁised‘as to the
scope of his testimony. |

MR. RYAN: Your Honor, he was--

THE ADMINISTRATiVE LAW JUDGE: S50 you can
have spECific objections as festimony may arise, and
then I will deal with those gquestions at that time.

MR. RYAN: Fair enough, Your Honor. Just
for the record, it was'my understanding ﬁhatrhé was
moved in as an expert in engineering ané modeling. f
had no objection to that.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Thank
you.

All right. So h@ hés been designated, and
you may now proceed, Mr. McAfee.

MR. McAFEE: Thank you, Your Honor.
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- DIRECT EXAMINATION (Resumed)
BY MR. MéAFEE:

0. Mr. Woerner, Jjust kind of cutting to the
chase here, could you tell us how you first became
involved with working with Lowell Vos on his feedlot?

A.  We were contracted with--  Back up. The
Towa NRCS had put out a solicitation for qualified
firms to provide engineering services for some of
Eheir'clients. There has been money'designated at
the federal level to oufsoﬁrce, if vou will, those

services due to backlog on projetts, lack of

timeliness getting to some of their clients.

So we~-we put in an application for that.
We went thxoggh the interview process, and based on
thelqualified—~qualification"based selection pProcess
that'they used, our firm was awérded a five-vyear
contract with the Iowa NRCS.
Mr.‘Vos' feedlot was one of the proiects
that they provided to us in, I believe, July of 2004,
and at that time we initiated work with Mr. Voé.
Q. What did you first do for Mf. Vos?
A. Approximately a week after we*were awarded
the contract, énd in this particular‘what they call
work order for thé Vos feedlot, we met with Mr. Vos

and a gentleman by the name of Jerry 8indt, who 1s
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the district conservationist for Woodbury County for

the NRCSs.

We met on site at Mr. Vos' feedloit, walked
around, discussed what his thoughts were, what we can
provide to him in ﬁhe way of services, how our
contract was arranged with the NRCS.

THE ADMINIéTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: And just help
me out. I khdw you.said ity buﬁ when did this
on-site first wvisit witﬁ Mr. Vos' feed}ot occﬁr, what
fear.and month? | |

THE WITNESS: I believe it was late'Julj
2004, Your anor. |

THE ADMENISTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Thank

you.

BY MR. McAFEE:

0. Could ?ou.tell us, what were thé
circumstances as to why you got invol%ed or what was
NRCS's request?. | |

A.  The NRCS had, I believe, earlier in 2004,
performed a site survey at Mr. Vos' feedlot,
topographic survey, to begin engineering. They wére
unable to give it the proper attention.and wanted to
make sure that it moved forﬁard.

S50 we wer@'informed of this, and, like I

stated, we met with him on site, as well as the local
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NRCS individual inrcharge of that county, to discuss
our involvement further.

Q. Do you know or were you aware at the time if
Mr. Vos was participating in what's been called the
Iowa Plan?

A. We were provided information by the Towa
NRCS that idéntified that a plan of action was put
together for his facility. We were not informed as
to whether or not it had actually been filed until

later on.

Q. Were you aware of what the Iowa Plan was?
A Yes.
Q. And could you tell us briefly--the Court's

had some testimony regarding. that, but your
understanding of what it was at the.time?

A, My understanding of the iowa Plan at that
timé was that it‘was established as somewhat of an

amnesty program for livestock producérs to volunteer.

information on their facility so that the DNR could

prioritize, rank their facilities in'high, medium, or .
low category, I believe is how they had it, so that
the producers would have an understanding of,
perhaps, the urgency.

The higher priority feedlots would ke the

ones that would be preferred'to'get taken care of
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sconer or early on in the stage and then working'
their way down to the medium and low risk, I pelieve

is how they identified it.

0. Did you know at the time if Mr. Vos had been
ranked?

A, No.

Q. Ckay. Do you know now 1if he had been
ranked?

B, Ié is my undaistanding that he had been
ranked. I-- Yes. |

0. =~ Do you recall that ranking?

A. No, sir.

0. Okay. So what did vou do after ﬁ@@tinglon

site with Mr. Vos?

A. After our visit in July with Mr. Vos and
Mr. Sindif, we were to coﬁe back—--per our contract
with thé Iowa NRCS, we were to come back with a
feasibility'report for what Mr.--what the producer
was looking to do.

In this case, Mr.lvbs was looking at an
alternative technologylsystem, and we feit it would
be prudent, prior to giving him this feasibility
report, which would identify'possibie construction
cost, time lines, issues that may come about with

whatever system he chose, it would have been--it
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would be?rudent for us to_understand‘the alternative
technology rules or, gather, have them in place at
the DNR level, make sure we understood them so that -
we can provide him an accurate snapshot of what that
type of system would be for his facility.

Q. When you begéme invelved with Mr. Vos, was
NRCS still involved in working with Mr. Vos? |

A. Directly, ves, becaaSe they were funding our
services for Mr. Vos. He also had, it's‘my
understanding,'EQIP monies available for his project
on the construction gide as well.

0. Do you recall whaé you did next as far as
preparing any plans or anything for Mr. Vos?

A, In, I believe, February of 2005, we had a
little-better understanding of the alternatiﬁe
technology systems that were floating around the
state as far as the rules and the general idéa of how

they were gonna be critiqued! I do not b@ii@ve at

- that time, however, that thg rules were finalizéd;

But in February of 2005, we did pxesent 
Mr. Vos, as well as our contract fepresentative at
the Iowa NRCS office, with a copy of a report
outlininé a conventioﬁal system, a holding pond-type
éyst@m,-and its costs, and then we also clarified

that in our opinion it would be prudent to make sure
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that the rules regarding alternative techﬁologi@s
were finalized before we--before we finalizéd:
anything with respgct £o construction costs and/or
feasibiiity on that side.

Q. Did you have any understanding as to what
Mr. Vos' status was under-the Iowa Plan at the time
yoﬁ‘started? lDid—you‘know, was he on time or—-

A. No.

Q. You didn't have any~~- Did NRCS relate
aﬁything to you about their status in performing work
for Mr. Vos?

AL Theronly thing we were provided was what was
identified as a preliminaﬁy plan of action outlining
some dates; however, we were—-it wés mever confirmed
to us that anytﬁing had been set in stone. It was
our assumption; however, we weren't provided any
official'paperwork from the Towa DNR at that time
regarding Mr. Veos and the iowa Plan.

0. i'd liké to have you turn, if you would,
please—-
| MR. McAFEE: And, Your Honor, may I
approach?

THE ADMINISTRATiVE LAW &UDGE: You may.
BY MR..MCAFEE:' |

Q. I'1l help you find--
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THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Let's‘go off

the record.

(Discussion off the record.)

BY MR. McAFEE:

Q. Mr. Woern@r,‘would you please, 1in the
exhibit.book that's in‘front éfpyou,‘turn to Tab 23.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:' This is frcm
EPA exhibits?
MR . McAFEE: Yes. The Complainant's Exhibit
23, please.
BY MR. MCAFER:

0.  Okay. And that's a fairly lengthy exhibit,
put it starts out with eight pages. Would you flip
past'those. .And then there's 27 pages with |
handwfitten numbers at the bottom. Would you please
go to page 4 cof 277 |

- Do you recognize what this document is?

A, Yes.

0. Could you tell us what it is?
A. It appears to me the public notice as well

as proof of publication for an NPDES permit for

a-—-for Lowell Vos Feedlot.

Q. And is there a date on this?
A Yes.

Q. and what is that date?
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A The proof.of publication date is October
6th, 2004. |
0. And tell ué, what's involved with.awmwhat
does a proof of publication mean in the process of an

NPDES permit?

A. The proof of publication?
0. Yes.

A. It is a statement stating that public notice
Was public noticed and where it was public noticed
and when it was public noticed.

0. And by the fact that there's a proof of

‘publication, does that mean that an NPDES permit is

in the works or has been prepared, or what does that
mean?
A, I believe that's+--that it means that an

NPDES permit applicatioh had been receilved and--

Q. Received by whom?

A. By the Iowa bNR—~

Q. Okay.

A. -~in this case.

Q. Did you prepare--did you work on the NPDES

permit application that this public notice appeéars to
represent?
Al No.

C. Do you know who did?
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A I belieﬁe it was the Iowa NRCS.
0.  So as.of October 6th of 2004, then, it
appears that an NPDES permit application nad been
prepared and submitted to DNR and.proaf of
publication had been--it is proof that notice had

been published for regardingfthat permit application;

. is that right?

A. Yes.

0. Okay. Were you awaré of this at this time?
Al Was I aware-—-

0. Were you--

A. I was not aware that this had been public

noticed at this--at the time of the public notice.

Q. So then apparently‘NRCS was still doing some

.work on the file?

"THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: You could say

.you'can't answer that duestion, for example, but what

T don't want you to do is what some w;tnesses have
done 1s they throw back a gquestion to counsel.

If you don't feel you can anéwer it.because
you don't know, juét say either, "I don't understand
your question,".or, "7'm unable to answer that
qu@sﬁion," and then yowur attorney_will have a chance
to either move on to Something else or either

rephrase the guestion.
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A. Could.you please rephrase the question?
BY MR. McAFEE: |

Q. Sur@; I think, you know, you testified that .
for this proof of publication to be there there would
have had to have been an NPDES permit application
submitted to DNR; is that cérrect?

A, Yes.

Q. Someone has done that, evidéntiy, but it

wasn't you?

A, Yes.

Q. Who wasldoing the work for Mr. Vos prior to
your

A.  The Iowa NRCS.

Q. And, as far as you know, would it have been

the Iowa NRCS that might have submitted this NPDES
permit application?
MR. RYAN: Objection; calls for speculation.

He's already testified he has no knowledge of where

this thing came from.

THE ADMINISTRATEVE LAW JUDGE: Sustained.
BRY MR. McAFEE:

Q. Would someone have prepared an NPDES permit

application for this notice to have been published?

A. Yes,

Q. Okay. Now, I want to proceed with you were

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, IA 50309-4155

(515) 243~65%6




10

11

12

13

14
15
16
17
l18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

1055
testifying as tc what was=--what work you were doing

that} I guess, fall of '04 and winter of '05; is that

right?
A, Yes.
Q. Okay. And I think-- Well, go ahead with

yOour t@stimony about what you were doing to prepare
some Uype of‘design plans for Mr.‘Vos.

A, Following oér Febfuary 2005 report to
Mr. Vos, we were 1in contact again with him in May of
2005 regarding our report from Feﬁruary, as well as
which direction we were to move fozward——or'which
direction.we were to move with respect to-his permit
application or'thé design that we had been hired to
finish for the NRCS.

Q. In your work with Mr. Vos up to this point
and, in fact, going forward, did you find him

cooperative?

A. Tes.

0. Did he seenm interested in getting woerk done?
A.“ Yes.

Q. Are you aware of a letter that he may have

received from the Jowa DNR regarding his status in
the Iowa Plan?
A, Yes.

Q. How did you become aware of that letter?
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A. If I-- I believe we--we did not recéive a
copy ©of the letter directly. I believe that the NRCS
office in Woodbury County received a copy and faxéd a
copy of that letter to our office.
Q. Tf you would, would you please turn to
Complainant's Exhibit 22. And'please take a'look at

that. Is that the letter that you were referring to?

A. Yes.

Q. What's the date on that letter?

A, April 28, 2005.

Q. Aﬁd‘did Mr. Vos contact yéu, then, shortly

after tﬁat date?
A, Yes.
Q. And vou may have testified to this, but what

date was it he contacted you?'

A. It was early May 2005, I bélieve May 4th or
5th. |

C. And did he mention receiving this lettei?

A.  Yes.

Q; And what did you and he taik about?

A. We talke&_abdut the options, what was in
front of us, what we needed to accomplish. We

discussed whether or not aiternétive technolo@y and
conventional system would benefit his facility, which

one was he interested in pursuing at that time.

PETERSEN COURT REPORTERS

317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606

Des Moines, IA 50309-4155
(515) 243-6596




10

11

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

1057
May 4th, 2005, two engineers from §ur
office, not including myself, visited with Mr. Vos at
his facility.

Q. Before we get to that, Mr. Woerner, I wanted
to ask vyou, in yvour discussions with Mr. Vos, he.did
méntion ﬁhis letter; is that right?
| A, Yes.

.Q, ~ Was there any--was there any sense of

urgency in his discussions with you?

A. Yes.
Q. And that urgency was regarding what?
A Wanting to bring this to a closure, wanting

to do the xight'thing, making sure that what he was
going to decide to do in the long term--~long-range
plans, rather, was going to fit his facility. He
didn't want to make a decision short term and regret
it long term.

Q. I'd now like to have yvou—~—- There's a
smaliler notebock there labeled "Respondent's Hearing
Exhibits"™ with a green c<over.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yep. lYouTve
got it.
BY-MR. McAFEE:
Q. Would vou please turn to Tab 9, piease.

Do you recognize that photo?
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A, Yes.,
Q. I believe you fust festified that several
people frdm yvour office went to Mr. Vos' site on what

date was it?

A. I believe May 4th, 2005.
Q. And were you present that day?
A.  No.
0. Do you-know if what's been markéd as

Respondent's Exhibit 9, which is a photogréph, do you

know if that photograph was taken that day?

A, Yes.
Q. and how do you know that?
A, Upon after our engineers returned to the

office, they dictated a contact report and put photos
in that r@port, and these photos were with that
report.

Q. Did you have a cause or an opportunity
review those photos?

A. Yes.

Q; Taking a look at Respondent's Exhibit 9,

‘could you tell us what that photo depicts and where

it was taken from?
A.. The photo is from Mr. Vos' feedlot toward
the west end of the facility looking west. In the

photo there is a catc¢h basin there.
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Q. Does the photo show his feedlot itself} the

surface?
A. It shows a portion.
Q. And tell us what you surmised from viewing

this photo fegarding the feedlot surface.

A. The feedlot appears to have--be clean. Tt
doesn't appear to be large piles of manure sitting
within the vard.

Q. Would that indicate that maybe the feedlot

has been scraped recently?

A.  Yes.
Q. You visit guite a few feedlots, I take it?
A. Yes.

Q. How would you rank Mr. Vos' feedlot, based
on this‘photo, for-cl@aﬁliness of the lots?

A. Based on this photo, 1t would appear that
this feedliot is--is, obviouély, clean, but would be
one.of the cleaner ones that I have seen.

Q. | Okay; Let's piease'turn to the next tab,
Respondént's Exhibit 10. Could you identify this
exhibit for us, please?

A. It is a photo of Mr. Vos' feedlot on the--be
on the south side of the feedlot looking to the
north.

0. And tell us what this photo~~tell us your
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interpretation, I'll say, of this phbto.
A. It ié of a different pen than thé previous
photo. It shows, like the other photo, & clean yard

that appears to be well maintained, does not appear

“to be large guantities of manure sitting in the yard.

South side of the yard whéxe thé feﬁce is shown.in
the photo, there is a grasé strip there.

Q. And tell us what that grass--the importancé,
if any, to you of that grass strip.

A. Healthy standing grass would,indicate
thérew—there would not be severe ercsion problems.
Based onrthis photo, it would appear that the stand
of grass does not have any dead spots within it,
which could possibly be caused from erosion washing
out thergrass, or pollutants br too many nutrients
over the grass would cause 1t to have a poor stand.

Q. For what purpose, if you know, would these
photos have been taken by your associates?

A. When we visit a site, we like td get photos
of the site so that we can identify several things
from.it. One, to properly design a‘faciiity, you
have to design it so that you can match the
producer's management style so that it would be easy.
for the producer to continue working in the yatds the

same way as he or she has been in the past. You
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don't want fo cause any increase in workload for
themnm.
So we take a pictﬁre to get an understanding

of what the yards look like during our visit. That

'may lead into what type of management style the

producer has without directly asking him.
We also would typically take photos from a

marketing standpoint to get before and after photos

of facilities, as well as to include photos within a

report.

Q. - You mentioned management styvle. Would
managenment étyle include cleanliness of the loté?

A. Yes.

Q. Would you‘please turn to Exhibit 11. and
what is this exhibit?

A. It is a photo of Mrf.VOS' feedlot in close
proxiﬁity to the éxevious photo. This phote, I |
believe, 1s facing more northeast ﬁhan the previous
photo. It Shows similar yard cénditions as the other
photos fhat we've looked at. Stand of grass in thié
photo is comparable to the one in the previous phofo
as well. | |

Q. Do vyou sée anything in the lower right-hand
corner éfwthe photo?

“A. Yes.

PETERSEN COURT REPCORTERS
317 Sixth Avenue, Suite 606
Des Moines, IR 50309-4155

(515) 243~6596




10

11

12

13

14

1b

16

17

.18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

1062

0. and what is that?

b, it appears to be the edge of thé field that
is out at his site. |

Q. So dces that give usg some perspective as to
the grass strip there that you've identified?

A. Yes.

Q. So we can get some idea of the width because
of the presence of the crop fiezd there?

A. Yes.

Q. Looking at the grass, does the ground level
appear fo be any différent there looking next to the

fence as opposed Lo near the crop_field?

A. Yes.
Q. And tell me what you see.
A It looks as if the south side of the fence,

there appears to be a berm--

Q. Okay.

A. --that is higher than the bottom of the
photo where the south edge of the grass is.

Q  Could vou please turn to Exhibit 12. And
could you describe this exhibit for me, please?

A, This is a photo of Mr. Vos' feedlot. Tt
would be one of the west pens looking toward the
west.

O. Would you-~ Go ahead, please.
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A. Similar conditions within the pens as the
other photoé with respecfto cleanliness. Appears to
be very clean tgck on the animals, which typically is
an indicator that we don't have muddy conditions or
piles of manure for them to lie down in. 1In the
background ﬁheré is a catch basin.

0. You've just referred to the condition of the

animals. What term did you use?
A The tack.
Q. Explain what you meanrby'that.
A, .Tack with the animal would be the condition

of the hide; is it clean tack or dirty.

0. Would that also be present in Exhibit 97
A'. Yes.
0. And do those--do you have The same

observation there regarding the tack?
A. Yes.

Q. Now, again, these photos were taken bn, I

"believe you teséified, May 4th} 20657

A. Yes.
Q. Okay. Ié that when you were-- Well, tell
us what-- Your associates were there that day.  What

was their purpdse? You've testified to some of this,
but--

A.  The purpose of their visit was to talk with
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Mr. Vos regarding thé future direction that we were
to go with respect to the design.

I believe at that time we had a few

preliminary layouts that we had put together for this

facility. I believe they discussed those preliminary
iayouts with Mr. Vcé to see’what he may have 1liked or
not liked, agreed or not agreed with with dur
proposed structures.
Q.' AY this time, what was Mr. Vos' intentibn as

to what type of runoff control system to build?

| A. At this time Mr. VOSW—itfslmyrundérsﬁanding,
based on the report that I read from bur site visit
that day, that there was still some decision
between—-—-that needed to be f;nalized betwéen the
alternative technology and the conVentiQnal syStem;

however, he was leaning more toward the conventional

system.
Q. And why was that?
A. . Because of the delays with the finalization

of the alternative technology rules.
Q. What did he tell you about that?
A. I did not speak with him that day regarding

that, but I spoke with Mr. Vos the next day, and he

'sti1ll had concerns regarding both approaches, both

types of systems, and was--told me that he would--he
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needed to make a decision soon and that he would get

‘back to us with respect to the alternative versus

conventional approach.
| Q.‘ What did you do then?

A. At that time we contacted the Iowa NRCS to
inform them that Mr. Vos did wan£-~was going to move
forward; however, we weren't sure which type of
system he was wanting. I felt that it would be wise
for us io put together a proposal with—;to the Iowa
NRCS so that we could continue to move forward. |

0. -Did you~~ I'm sorry. Go ahead.

B. T spoke with our contracting representative
at.the Iowa &RCS; .At tﬁat time we were told that
funding was available foi'this project to fund the
enginéering portion of it and that when we had a few
more detalls we could'put together a work.ordex for
their review and acceptante.

Q. | Then what happened?

A, Then.about a week to two weeks later I
received a call from——from the contracting
representative at the Iowa NRCS stating that they
wefe hesitant to.fund this particular project because
they felt the costs would be prohibitive, and then
they went on further to state ﬁhat they also did nof

believe that the engineering money that was there a
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week or two wéeks prior was there anymore, s0 We were
in limbo as to whether or not they would be able to
fund the engineering for this facility.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Please put a
month and year withlreferénce to what you just
testified to, approximately.

THE WITNESS: It was June 2005 with respect
to the conversations with thé Iowa NRCS and the.
funding issues around the project. |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Thank you.

BY MR. McAFEE:

0.  Did you talk to Mr. Vos about this?

A.  Yes. We.télked to Mr. Vos again in--in June
of 2005 followin@ cur May visit and conversation, and‘
at that point iﬁ time he stated that he wanted——&e
needed to move forward with the conventional system
for his facility.

We then talked to the NRCS to gonfirm that
everything was a go on their end from a funding
standpoint and put together a work order, and they
approved it in mid-July to mid--the second half of
July 2005.
| Q. S0 what did that mean to--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW.JUDGE: "May. I Jjust

ask one question so I can understand this,
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Mr. M;Afee?

MR. MCAFEE: Sure.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: The funding
issue with the NRCS wag~-am I correct that it had to
do with they had hesitations and gquestions of funding
for the alternative system, that's what gave them
aﬁgstlor gave them_éome Worry?

THE WIfNESS: Initiélly, yes, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: But then
after that they gave the green light for the

conventional system to qo-ahead,'there would be

funding for that?

THE WITNESS: Mr.--
‘ THE ADMINiSTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: If T don'é

have it correct, tell me. |

THE WITNESS:  Mr. Vos had. funding for a
conﬁentional system at that time--or prior to that
tiﬁe already.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Oh.

THE WITNESS: The issue with fﬁnding, Your
Honor, was whether, one, funding the altermative
technology from a construction standpoint may be
cost—prghibitive. They did not have a standard in
place at that time at the NRCS level.

And then the funding issue was also=—-
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irregardless of whether it was conventional or
alternative system, the fundihg for the engine@ring
side of the project was also in dquestion by the NRCS.
They did not know if they had the money available.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: And then, as
I understand your testimony——l'il let you get back,
Mr. McAfee--but it was after that, am I correct,

Mr. Vos then made a determinatﬁon to go with the
COnventibnallsystem?

THE WITNESS: It was—-- Those--the issues of
the ﬁundigg'and M?. Vos deciding ﬁo go with the
conventicnal system wag all within a seven— to
ten-day period. I do not recali if--if Mr; Vos said
go convéﬁtional and then ihey-said money's there the
next day--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay.

THE WITNESS: -—--or not.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Thank YOu.

Go ahead, Mr. McAfee.

MR. McAFEE: Thank you, Your Honor.

BY MR. MCAFEE:

Q. So.then everything's a go, then, in July of
2005,‘finaily, and‘you move forward?

A Yes.

Q. What bappens then in the work you did or
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your:firm?

A. " We began in July of 2005-- We had been
previded priocr to that é partial topogréphic survey
for Mr. Ves' facility. That was conducted by-the
Towa NRCS prior to May of 2004. However, in July of-
2005 we moved forward, did some verification of the
survey with our own survey to make suxé that the data
Was accurate,‘proceeéed with put?ing together a
permit application.for Mr. Vos to be submitted to the
IoanDNR, and in December of 2005 we provided that
application to the Iowa DNR for their review.

'Q. " During this péfiod of time from, say, Jduly
through December, when you're working on this
project, did you get any notification from Iowa DNR
about Mr. Vos' status under the Iowa Plan?

A. No.,

Q. Did Mr. Vos say anyvthing Eo you about his
status under the‘Iowé Plan?

A, Not fhat I recall.

0. And you've seen Exhibit.22, which was the
letter from.DNR stating that if his final engineering
plan was not submitted within 30 days he'd no 1oﬂger
be in fhe Iowa Plan? You've seen that letter and you
were aware of it, right?

A. Dated April of 20052
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Q. Correct,.
A, Yes.
0. I just want to make sure I'm clear and that

we're all clear that, to your knowledge, did Mr. Vos
ever receive a follow-up to that letter that he was,
in fact, not in the Jowa Plan anymore?

Al To my knowledge, no.

0. And in your conversations -and deaiings with
DNR in preparing this permit application, did they
ever sayranything to you about that?

A No. |

Q. Okay. S0 in December‘of'ZOOB, a permit

application is submitted. What did you do next?

A. In February of 2006 I sent an e-mail to Doug
Opheim. Doug is--was an engineer for the Iowa DNR in

their Spencer field office. ﬂr. Opheim was the
engineer that was'reviewing aur appiication for
Mr. Vos as well as, at that time, five other feedlots
in Iowa;

0. What was your purpcse in sending that e-mail
to Mr. Opheim? |

A, I sent the e-mail to Mr. Opheim in February

cf '06 to check on the status of Mr. Vos', as well as

' the other five feedlots that we had permit

applications in front of Doug. Some of those
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applications dated back to May of 2005, and we were
approaching nine months' review on those.

| I wanted to for a couple of reasons, and for
Mr. Vos' facility, I wanted to, one, let them know
that GO days'wés quickly approaching, which would
have been a week to fen days after my e-mail, the
60~-day review period that the DNR had to review the
plans; and, two, we were also aware that theAIowa
feedlbt Plan was coming to an.end and we wanted to
make sure that we, 1f you will, poked the DNR to make
sure we got thése pérmits out--or,. rather, approved
ahd back fo.&s s@lwé could begin construction as soon
as possible in the spring of '06. |

0. What was Mr. Opheim‘s response to you?

A. Mr. Opheim stated in his e-mail that

Mr. Vos' project, as well as the other five that I

%

had e-mailed him guestioning whether or not the cther

five were ready, he stated that all six of those were

on his list for--to be approved by the end of the
mohth, the end of February 2006.

Q. And we'll kind of jump ahead here and come
back, but regarding Mr. Vos' feedlot, when did he
actually feceive his construction permit?

A. I believe the approval was in August of

2006. I do not know the exact date.
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0. So I'1ll ask you to state the obwvious. Did
DNR get it out by the end of the ﬁonth?
A. No.
Q. Were there any problems with his permit

application that you were notified of by DNR?

A. No.
Q. You do a lot of permit applications, I think
it's c<¢lear from'your testimony. Was this--was

Mr. Vos' time period here to receive a permit
unusual?
A. At that time, we were having issues, and
I'11 speculate that others were as well--
- MR. RYAN: Objectién. He's spéculating,
Your Honor. I'll object to that, move that it be
stricken.

THE ADMINESTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Well,
unfortunately, I was making a notation so I wasn't
clesely listening to it. Could you rephrase the
queétion, counsel?

MR. McCAFEE: Sure.

BY MR. McAFEE:
0. Mr. Woerner, could you just--
MR. McAEEE: I'm SOrry, Your Honor.
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUbGE: Do vyou Want

AY

the question—-
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MR. McAFEE: That's okay. I'11 ask the
court reporter to please read back the guestion.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes. Can vyou

do that for us. Thank you.

(Question read by ﬁhe reporter.)

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yeah.
There's a problem with that quéétion?

MR. RYAN: No. His statement, he said I
have to speculate.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: I'm sorry.
Just try and answer his gquestion.

A. At that point in time, our permit
applicatiohs with the Iowa DNR were taking a lot
longer than what we felt they should. I did not feel
that nine months to review a project and then have no
questions or problems with that application¥~we felt
that was--was too long of a time period. Mr. Vos'
review process at the DNR was, I would say, average
for what we were experiencing at that time.

BY MR. McAFEE: |

Q. Mr. Woerner, you, as a project engineer, I
assume you-- ‘Well, do you havé any.experience_with
the construction process itself once the permit is
issued? |

A, Yes.
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Q. And I'm talking in genéral‘here.. 50 part of
your duties as an engineer reguire you to ke involved
with the actual constfuction?
A. Duties as an enéineer on this type of

faéility, we would--we would be invelved with

construction staking, monitoring, and observation of

the facility.

0. 0f the construction?

A. 0f the construction éctivities. We would'
not physically partake in the actual construction
acti@ities} but we would be there to make sure that
what was constructed or what is beinglcdnstructed ié
in éccordancé with the pians and specificafions that
have been aﬁproved by, in this case, the.Iowa DNR and
also the Towa NRCS because of the funding on the
project.

Q. So as part of your duties, you have some

idea of the time 1t takes for a project 1like this to

be built?
Al Yes.
Q. In your opinion, if Mr. Vos had received his

peimit on time, would he have been able to construct
the necessary structures before the end .of the
five—yéar period on the Iowa Plan?

A. Yes.
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Q. Mr. Woerner, when Mr. Vos received his

permit, construction permit, I think you testified in

August of 2006-- Is that correct?
A. Yes.
0. And in the construction business is that

considered getting into the fall?

A. Yes.

Q.' And what are your thoughts aboult starting
construction in the'fall of the vear on a project.
like Mr. Vos'?

A.  On feedlot like Mr. Vos' or any feedlot, I
would be hesitant to move forward with constrﬁcting
holding ponds and waste storage structures that are
constructed.with'ciay. If thére's a lot of dirt work
to be done, you get a littie nervoug starting a
project that late in the season because if we have a
wet fall‘or we have an early frost, LThen we havé
paftially constructed holes in the ground that are--
potentialiy Qould £Fill up with snow in the wiﬁtef and
would even further delay construction in the spring.

Q. I just brigfly want to go back, if.I could,
Mr. Woerner, to this-quesﬁion of_fhe Iowa Plan ahd
Mr. Vos' status under it. You testified that up to
the poinf bf submitting the pezmit'appiication, I

believe, you were not aware-- Well, what was your
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understanding of his statﬁs under the Ibwa Plan prior
to submitting the permit applicatioh?

A. The-- Based on the April letter that we
referenced earlier, we had not heard anytﬁing
reqarding his stétus'in the Iowa Feedlolt Plan up to
the.timé of our submittal of his plaﬁs or even to-th@‘
date of Auéust '06 when his permit application was
eventual ly appro%ed.

Q. | When you had your e—maﬁl exchang@ with
Mr. Opheim in February of '06, did he menfioh

anything about Mr. Vos' status under the Iowa Plan?

A, No.
Q. He.didn't say anything like, "He's not in
the Iowa FPlan anymoreﬂ ‘Tt's not a problem," or no

mention?
“A, No.
MR; MpAFEE: Your Honor} could I just have a
minute to look at a few of,ﬁy notes?
THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JﬁDGE: Certainly.
We'li go off the record.
MR. McAFEE: Thank you.
{(Discussion off the record.)_
BY MR. MCAFEE:
0. Okay. Mr. Woerner, I now want to turn to

some of the computer modeling issues in this case,
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and I understand from some of the §uestions I asked
you previously that you do‘have some experience with
computer médeiing‘in the agricultural engineering

context; is that right?

A Yes.

Q. You mentioned a TR-55, I believe?

A. Yes.

Q. For what purposés do you use computer

modeling in your business?

A. With respect to liﬁestock fécilities, we use
the models to flood route the 25wyeaf, 24-hour, or
the 1b—year ag well storm event, depending on what we
were designing. The model is used to model the
rainfall storm event to determine how ditches, pipes,
pumps, other waste handling structures would éonvey
the water to make sure that they are sized properly.

Q. So I take it from what you've testified to

is it fair to say vyou use modeling for planning

purposes?

AL Yes.

Q. Are you aware of how modeling was used in
this case?

A. The.only knowledg@ I have of modeling in
this case was that initially TR~55 was used. I'm not

aware of any other modeling.
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Q. Okay. 1In general, and I'm speaking in
general, from your experience with computer modeling,
do you believe, 1in your opinion, thét it should be
used to prove an actual discherge cof a pollutant
under the Clean Water Act f:om the feedlot such as
Mr. Vos'?

I, Neot stand—albne.

Q. What do you mean by that?
A. Computer models-- By not stand—aloﬁé, I

‘mean there would have to be, in my opinion, other

physical evidence, such as a water quality sample,
taken to determine whether or not pollutants had
reached somewhere where they weren't supposed to, a
stream or a creek.

I believe using a model saying, "It rained
and the model says you polluted, therefore you're
guilty;" I believe is flawed. |

MR. MCAFEEI I have no further questions,
Your Honor. | |

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okay. Do you
need a minute or do you want to launch right iato
cross®?

MR. RYAN: I'm ready to launch, Your Honor.

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Okavy. Then

we have a go.
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MR. RYAN: Thank you, Your Honor.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. RYAN:

0. Good morning, Mr. Woerner. I'm Mr. Ryan
Y

from the EPA. We met briefly out in the hallway.

Why don't we étart with the most recent
testimony and move back. I'm going to have some
quéstions about what you testified about this
morning. I'm sure your attorney to;d you thétg

| The modeling. Let's talk about the
modeling.‘ You testified you didn't--you did not
believe it was—;it was flawed ﬁo use the modeling as
proof of violatién_of the Clean Water Act; is that
cofrecf? |

A. Without any other--without a water quality
sample, I believe, that appﬁoach.

0. Okay. So you must undetstand, then, what
the level of procf is for proving a violation of the
Clean Water Act?

A. | In this particular case, I-- No.

Q. Okay. So you've sald use of the model is
flawed, but vou don't know what the.level'of proof
is; is that correct?

AL Yés.

0. - Okay. So, now, vou testified earlier that
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modeling--you uséd TR-55, and I believe earlier I had
the opportunity to ask you a few questions and you
mentioned a couple other models. Are these
sbmethingj—are these models something you rely on in

your day-to-day work at Eisenbraun & Associates?

A.  That particular model as well as other
models.

0. Yeah.

A. Wej—wé do use those on a daily basis.

Q; Okay. And you rely on them?

A. We rely on thém, yes.

Q. Yes. And do ycu find them trustworthy?

A. For the purpose that we need then, yeé.

.Q. Okay. So and th@n.you mentioned that you

used them for modeling, I believe--and correct mé if
I get this wroﬁgw*the flow route of a 25-year,
24-hour stofm event, for e%am@le; is that correct?

A. | Flood routing, yes.

 Qq Flood routing. I™m sérry. And tell me
about that real briefly. What i1s that exactly?

A. Flood routing is-- When we use the model
for flood routing, we simuiate——the model, rather,
simulates a particular storm eveﬁt. In this case I
was referring to a 25-year, 24-hour storm event.

For instance,-in'SQuth Dakota, where we also
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practice engineeriﬁg, aﬁy pumps oOr any pipes thaf
receive rainwater for a feediot need to‘be sized to_'
proparly‘handle the rﬁnoff from the 25-year, 24-hour
storm.

We also use that same approach in Iowa and
cther states to make sure——if we have a culvert
that's handling runocff, we want to make sure that it
is Sized properly so that it doesn't wash out or

fail. We would alsc not want to oversize i1t and

‘waste money.

Q. So you used--you used the results of your

modeling to size pumps, for example?

A. Yes.
Q.r 0Okay. So you're using these models for your
engineering? |
| A; Yes.
Q; So the results of these models are telling

you what size pumps to.eﬁgineer into a. facility, for
example?

AL Yeg.

Q. Yeah. So théy're not simply used for

planning purposes; they're actually used in your

engineering?
A. Yes.
0.  Okay. ©Now, are you familiar with what
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computer model was used by EPA in this enforcemeht
action?

A. I am awarelof'the TR-55 program that was
used initially.

Q. But are ypu——

A ‘I am notlaware 5f any other model that has
been uséd.

Q. Okavy. So you can't, és you sit here ﬁoday,
of fer an opinion as to whether the model EPA used in
this case waé appropriate because yéu'don't knbw what
model was used, do you?

A. I know what model was used initially. I do
not‘know if any other model has been used.

Q. Okay. So when you offered your opinion as
to whether use of models was flawed; you éffered that
opinion not knowing what model 1is at issue in this
case today righft as we sit here today?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. Let's turn to--

MR. RYAN: May I have just a moment, Your

Honor, to grab some--

THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE: Yes.
BY MR. RYAN:
Q. Mr. Woerner, could you please turn to the

series of photographs we discussed--you discussed on
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direct testimony that Would bé in that small green---
Yes. That would be starting with Respondent's
Exhibit 9.

Do you have that in front of you?
A. Yes. Yes, I do. |
Q. And you weren't there--I believe you

testified you weren't there the day these were taken;

these were taken by someone in your coffice?

A. Correct. Yes.
Q. And there are--there's Exhibits 9, 10, 11.
There are four~-I count four photos here. Do you

also have four photos there?
A. Yes, I do.
Q. Aré those the only four photos that were in

your file when you reviewed the report from that

date?
Al Yes.
0. Now, I take it you've been to Mr. Vos"site,

you've seen it yourself?
A.. Yes, I have.
Q. Okay. Would you~—ydu would agree, would you

not, that these four photos do not show the entire

site?
A. Yes. They do not show the entire site.
Q. And they do not show any low point,
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necessarily, any breaks that might be in the berms?
A. Nos; 10 and 11 do not appear to have any
breakslin the berm, Photos 10 and 11.
Q. Now, is it your position--is it your--  It's
not your position, 1is it, that no water can come off

this site, 1s it, and--during a rainsform Or a 3now

melt?
A.  Could you define "site," please?
0. Yeah. Off the feedlot. It's not your

‘position, is it, that no water can flow off of this

feedlot during a rainstorm, 1is 1t?
'A. No.

Q. Okay. So the picture——the photographs that

we looked at, Respondent's 9, 10, 11 and 12, do not

tell you that this site is, essentially, buttoned up
and no discﬁarges from it can occur, Coﬁrect?

A.' I could not conclude from these photos that
it is buttoned up, as you said.

Q. Okay. But you have conciuded independently .
of these photographé that discharges can occur from
this site, haven't you?

A. Would fou please define "discharge"?

Q. Yeah.- Zf‘it rains on Mr. Vog' feedlot,
separately-from these photos, you have gonclud@d,that

water will exit the site, the feedlot?
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A, There 1s a potential—F

Q. | Okay.

A. -—-for water to leave this site.

Q. Now, you would agree water runs downhill,

would you not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q.. Basic hydrologic principle. And.you would
aér@e that Mr; Vos' feedlot is on a hill, correct?

A, Yes.

Q.. It's on the high point. ‘And you‘would
agree, would you nct, that there.is an unnamed
tributary a short distancé away downgradient from his
feedlot?

A. I assume that there is no name to the

"tributary that you are talking about.

‘Q. bkay. Well, you would agrée that there is a
tributary-—-a creek to the west-—-approximately tb the
west of his facility?

A.  Yes.
Q. That's downgradient-—- And that creek 1s
downgradient of his facility?

A Yes. .

Q.  And isn't it true thét you have stﬁted
that--I'm reading té you from a lettér you wrote on

December 2nd, 2005--"Currently manure and process
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